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To

The Members of AVADH RAIL INFRA LTD
Report on the audit of the standalone financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Avadh Rail Infra Ltd (“the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity. the statement of cash flows and
notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year on that date and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (* The Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, its Profit and total other comprehensive income, change in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the standards on auditing
(“SA’s") specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI’s code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note No 29 of 33 of the Standalone Financial Statements in respect of Balances of trade
receivable, loans and advances, trade payable etc which are subject to confirmation from the respective parties and
in the fair market value.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Based on the circumstances and facts of the audit and entity, there are not any key matters to be
communicated in our report.

Information other than the standalone financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis, the Board’s
Report including its Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility report, sustainability report,
corporate governance and sharcholder’s information, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that
oive a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements. Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or (o cease operations, or has no reabstie glternative but to do so.

e the Company s financial reporting process.

ilipura, Jaipur, Rajashthan - 302039
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

« Oblain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
4s a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures. and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the company to
express an opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstateme
ageregate. makes it probable that the eg
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standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Cnmﬁany so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS and other
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.:

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31. 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(1) With respect to the adequacy of the inlern'i controls with reference to standalone financial

statements of the company and the upurattin Joald
Branch : E 33, Scheme 19, Pearl Residency JUSt No
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Annexure “B”, Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
managerial remuneration for the year ended 31* March 2025 has been paid by the company to its directors
in accordance with the provision of section 197 read with schedule V to the act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

(i) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations, if any, on its financial position in its
financial statement.

(ii) The company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts,

(iii) There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year;

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the standalone financial statements, no funds (which are
material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to
or in other person(s) or entity, including foreign entities (“intermediaries™) with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall whether
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds(
which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entities including foreign entities (“funding parties™) with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall whether directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(¢) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e). as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

ividend during the year, the question of
in accordance with Section 123 of the

(v) Since the company has not declared
commenting on whether dividend de
Companies Act, 2013 does not arise. ( 3
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(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31,2025, which
have the feature of recording audit trial (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course
of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trial feature being tempered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

For Rajesh Kumar Gokul Chandra & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 323891E

(Archana Jhunjhunwala)
Partner

Membership No. 069068

UDIN : 25069098BMHIUM4959

Place : Kolkata
Date: 30.05.2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors Report under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory Requirement’ of even date to the members of M/s Avadh Rail Infra Ltd on the standalone
financial statements of the company for the year ended 3 1st March 2025,

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations provided to us by the company and the books of account and records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, we report that:

i. (a) (1) The Company has maintained proper records of tangible assets showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment on the basis of
information available.

(2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of the intangible
Assets.

(b) As explained to us, Property, plant & equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the

company as at the balance sheet date.

Description | Gross Held in the | Whether Period held — | Reason for not
of Property | Carrying | name of Promoter. indicate being held in the
Value Director  or | range where | name  of  the
their applicable company
Relative  or
employee
N. A

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ol our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year. Therefore, the provisions of
clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company,

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition ol Benami Property g apnssAct, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder. Therefore, the Gotaise (i)(e) of paragraph 3 of the order are
not applicable to the company,

Branch : E 33. Scheme 19, Pearl Residency, URE flaipur. Rajashthan - 302039
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ii. (a) As explained to us. the inventories have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate having regard to the size of the company and
the nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification
between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for
each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has been availed working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from Banks on the basis of security of
current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with
such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company.

lii  During the year the company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured. to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties:

(a) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of
loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any Subsidiaries, Joint Venture &

Associates and any other entity.
(Rs. In Lakh)

balance
the aggregate
: outstanding at
To whom amount during
the balance sheet
the vear
date
arties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures
" ; ) NIL NIL
and associates

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 719.36 687.73 *

*Details are given in Note 33 of financial statement for the year ended on March 31,2025,

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us. in our opinion the company has not made any investments, guarantees
provided. security given during the year. The terms and conditions of the grant of all loans
and advances in the nature of loans given during the year are not prima facie prejudicial to

the interest of the Company.

() According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. in the case of loans given. in our opimon the
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the receipts have

the part of the party to whom the money

| regular,

a. Jaipur, Rajashthan - 302039
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(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no overdue amount in

respect of loans granted by the company remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date;

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of any loan or advance

in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year. none has been renewed
or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same
parties;

()  According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the record of the Company, in our opinion the company has not granted
loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

the percentage thereof | aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters,
aggregate | to the total loans | related parties as defined in clause (76) of section
amount granted 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
NIL

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act.2013 in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits from the public; hence clause 3 (v) is not applicable to the
company. Accordingly. directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
acetion 73 to 76 ot any othot relevant provisions of the Act und the Compunive (Aceuplance
of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods and services provided by it
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of records with a
view to determine whether these are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund. Emplovees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax. Service Tax, Duty of Custom,
Duty of Excise., Value Added Tax. FEducation Cess and other material statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information iun given to us. there were no
undisputed outstanding statutory dues as nﬁ ch 3 .@3"'5 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became puyuhl ::3’

33. Scheme 19. Pear| Residency, Unit No 2. | . ashiimn - 302039
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, details of statutory dues referred
to in sub clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account
of disputes are given below.

Amount
Amount | paid
of under Period to
disputes | protest | which the
Sl. | Name of | Nature |(Rsin (Rs in amount Forum where
No. | Statute of Dues | Lakhs) | Lakhs) | relates dispute is pending
UpP
Commercia | Sales Commissioner
1 1 Tax Act | Tax 11.99 16.82 2006-07 Appeal
Office of The
Commissioner
(Appeals) Customs,
GST & Central
2 GST Act, | CGST | 9.85 NIL 2017-18 Excise, Lucknow
Office of The
Commissioner
(Appeals) Customs,
GST & Central
3 Excise Act | Excise | 5.67 5.67 2016-17 Excise, Lucknow
Office of The
Commissioner
{ Appeals) Customs,
GST & Central
4 | GST Act CGST | 5.48 5.48 2024-25 Excise, Kanpur
viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis ol our examination ol the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of any loan or other borrowings or any interest due thercon to any lender.

b)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the company, the company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

¢) In our opinion and according to S AR (m and explanations given to us by the
management. the term loans were/Aqp feeprpose for which the loans were obtained.

Branch : E 33. Scheme 19. Pearl Residency. Unjie
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(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an
overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company. we report that no funds raised on
short term basis which have been utilized for long term purpose by the company.

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures as defined under the Act. However the Company
had investments in its subsidiaries. associates or joint ventures (as defined under the Act)
out of its own funds, details of which are mentioned specifically in Note 33 of financial
statement for the year ended on March 31.2025.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the
procedures performed by us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures (as defined
under the Act.) except the following properties of subsidiary/ associate companies which has
previously been given as collateral securities to the Bank against enhancement of credit
facilities of the company which is remain continuously mortgaged with the Bank:

Name of the subsidiary/ associate Details of properties pledged as collateral
companies securities
Radiant Buildcon Private Ltd Flat No. 101 ,102,201,202.203, 301

2302303, 401 & 402 of Tower B-3 and
101,102,103,201,202,203,301,302,303,
401,402,403 of Tower B4 at Radiant
Apartment, formerly known as Marina
Heights Kharar,

Chandigarh Road, Tehsil - Kharar, Hadbast
No. 184, Dist - Mohati (Punjab)

Subhamoti Exports Private Ltd Muncipal door no. 1/12b, MKN road,
Alandur, Chennai-600016 comprised in
survey no, 1452 & 1453 and glrs no. 358
and 359 of st. Thomas mound cantonment
village. total extent 21355 sq. Feet.

x. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us
by the management. the company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments), Accordingly, the provisions of clause (x)(a)
of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year under review. Accordingly. the provisions of clause
(x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company.

xi, (&)
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explanations given to us, the company has neither committed any fraud nor any fraud on the
company has been noticed or reported during the year.

Based upon our audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government, during the year
and upto the date of this report.

Based upon our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to
us, there has been no instance of whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year under audit.

[n our opinion, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and as per the information and explanations given to us by the management,
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable. and the details have been disclosed in the
Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
Identification of related parties were made and provided by the management of the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the reports of the internal Auditor for the period under audit issued to
the company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedure.

According to the information and explanation given to us. We are of the opinion that the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of books and
records examined by us, the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

The company has not conducted any Non Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the year.

The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).
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xviii. There has been no resignation of the previous statutory auditors during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we
are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet. We, however state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts as on the date of balance sheet under review / audit and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due.

KX, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under sub section (5) of
section 135 of the Act. Accordingly reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the order
is not applicable to the company for the year.

XXi. According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the reports, issued
by the auditors of the subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures included in the consolidated
financial statements of the company, to which reporting on matters specified in paragraph 3
and 4 of the order is applicable, provided to us by the management of the company and
based on the identification of matters of qualifications or adverse remarks in their
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 reports by the respective component auditors and
provided to us, we report that the auditors of such companies have not reported any
qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO reports except in a case where the auditor
has qualified his report on the inventories of the company for no provision for possible
impairment on registration cancellation suits filed against fraudulent sales of 15 residential
flats and 4 commercial property and doubtful debts of Rs 18 Lakhs.

For Rajesh Kumar Gokul Chandra & Associates,

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 323891E

(Archana Jhunjhunwala)
Partner

Membership No. 069068
UDIN : 25069098 BMHIUM4959

Place : Kolkata
Date: 30.05.2025

Branch : E 33, Scheme 19, Pearl Residency. Unit No 2. Murlipura. Jaipur, Rajashthan - 302039
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“Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of M/s
Avadh Rail Infra Ltd

Report on the Internal Financial Control with reference to standalone financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of M/s
Avadh Rail Infra Ltd.(*the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies. the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirement and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the Company’'s internal financial controls wi gnce to standalone financial statements.

f 2. .‘vlur;tipun

ipur. Rajashthan - 302039
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company ; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to standalone
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal control with reference to
standalone financial statements established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Rajesh Kumar Gokul Chandra & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 323891F

{Archana Jhunjhunwala)
Partner

Membership No. 069068

UDIN : 25069098BMHIUM4959

Place : Kolkata
Date: 30.05,2025

Branch : E 33, Scheme 19, Pearl Residency, Unit No 2, Murlipura, Jaipur. Rajashthan - 302039



AVADH RAIL INFRA LTD.
[CIN: UZ5199TN1980PLCO0E3E4)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 318T MARGH, 20256

{¥ Lakh)
Particulars Mote Mo, As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
A |ASSETS
1|MON CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Proparty, Plant & Equipmaent 2(ih 00707 4066 48
(b} Capital Wark In Progress 2(i) 41917 11.62
{c} Intangible Assels 2{iiky 7.50 7.50
(d) Financial Assets
i} Imvestments 3 210681 1750.34
(i) Loans 4 520850 -
{im) Qther Financial Assets 5 636.26 337.88
{e) Deferred tax agsets (net) .
{Fy CHher non-curment assels G 3209 30 58.01
1187561 8231.81
2|CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Inventories 7 885137 3367 43
{b} Financlal Assets
(i} nvestments 8 137503 665 00
(ii¥ Trade receivables 4 11506.28 11348 .80
{iiiy Cash and cash equivaiants 10 B4.48 58587
{iv} Bank balance othar than (6] above 1" TIT.E0 B42.73
V] Loans 12 8222 36600
[wl) Other financial assels 13 583.37 481,30
{c) Current 1ax assets (nat) 14 218.57 11,74
{d} Cther currant asaets 15 140573 708,86
21633.56 18288.93
TOTAL ASSETS 33609.16 24520.74
B [EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(&) Equaty share capital 16 5287 52.87
(o) Cher Equity 17 18204 66 13010.68
18337 53 13063 55
LIABILITIES
1|NOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial Liabilities
() Bormowings 18 3497.82 1467.02
(i) Lersz liabilities 18 2618 47.50
{§i) Oher fimancial fiabilities
(o) Praviskans
(e} Daferrad tax Habilifies (ned} - 114,62 82,19
{cf) CHhver non current liatikites 20 B18.13 50121
4328.73 2147 82
2ICURRENT LIABILITIES
{&) Financial Liabilities
{7} Borrowings | 503272 4050.22
(i} Lease Kabilitles 23 134 1.34
(i) Trade pavables 23 3104 45 270336
Total putstanding dues of micso and small
enterprises
Total outsianding dues of credrtars athear than
micre and small enterprises
{iw} Other financeal liabiltas 24 - 50,00
(b} Other current kabslities 25 2379.72 2650438
&) Provistons -
1) Gurrent tax llabilities {net) - 42853 -
108944 890 2300 27
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 3360916 24520.74
Significant Accounting Palicies 1
Notes an Accounts k]

The accompanying notes 1 10 33 are an integral part of the Financial Stataments

I terma of our report attachad

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ﬁmm%wﬁ

For Rajesh Kumar Gokul Chandra & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRM: 312389E
Subhash Chandra Saraff
W v ﬁ;,.,,.,l,.“ i, Director
=1 DIM. 00354968 i—ﬂ\
{Archana Jhunjhunwala ﬂ\ -
Partner ¥

Membership Mo: 063068 mé//
e ishaek Sarafl Priyanka Saralf

Place : Kolkata =3 Director Director

Date : 30.06.2026 DIN. 00355289 DN, 05420193
(irgesh Kumar Shukla EEE‘TEHEIIE Vorma
Chief Financial Officar Company Secretary

PAN: AWFPS0130N Membership No: AGTET




AVADH BALL INFRA LT
(EIN: DZSF99T N 1S80P LCHEIES)
25 ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDE
[% Lakh}
Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
Alst March, 2025 st March, 2024
INCOME
1 |Revenue from operations 26 L LT ER 4135067
2 {Other income 27 617 88 27347
3 | Total lncome (1+2} 4531185 Al624. 14
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 238 2675929 2603450
Purchase of Stock [n Trade
Changes in mvenionics of finished goods, work-in-progress 9 {1531.93) LE1.00
and Stock an Tride
Emploves henefity expense I 3042 85 249] 83
Finange cosls 3 262 81 275.96
Deprecition wnd amortisation expense 2 334 2 43784
Other expenses 32 919893 721595
4 [Total expenses IR296.21 63708
5 [Profit before eaceptional items and tax (3-4) TiWIS. 64 498706
& |Excepthonnl items - =
7 |Profit before tax from continuing operation (5-6) TIHIS. 64 J987.06
& | Ty expense:
Curren tax 163678 132533
Dheferred tax 3242 2072
Income tax adjustment for carlier years R0 3041
Total Tax Expenses 1710.00 1285.46
4 {Profin / {Loss) alter tax for the vear (7-8) 529564 FT0L.60
10 Cither comprehensive income
Al (1) Begms that will not b reclassified 1o profit or loss
) Reimbarsement of defined bepefit plans (21 G0 {13.77)
[0i) Inceamne tis rebuting to iems that will nod be reclassiled woprofit or loss
Subtotal (A) {21.66) {13.77)
B (1] ltems that wall not be reclassified (o prolil or loss
) Change in fair value of debt instruments measured  af fair value through other . :
comprehensive inggme
Subtotal (B} - -
Totul other comprebensive income (A+R) (2 1.66) {13.77)
11| Total Comprehensive Income for the vear {9+ 10} 517398 IGRT.RI
12 |Earnings per equity share (Face value of Hs. 10/ each):
Basic (In Ry} 0as 56 659 86
[iluted (fn s 986 56 BH0.85
Significant Accounting Policics I
Motes on Aceounts i3
The accompanying wotes | 1o 33 are an inegral part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our repoert attached. For and on hehalf of the Board of Dircctors
For Rujesh Kumar Gokol Chandra & Assovintes m 65“‘.
Chariered Accountamnis
FRN: 323801E Subhash Chandrea Saeafl
Mirector
I3, (03544064
Mfw Q&u\@\x—
{Archang Mool ala) -
Partaes ’:ﬁ:ﬁnhek sarall Privanks Saraff
Membership Mo; G60064 [¥reetor Director
DN IASS1EY DM, a0 9

Place @ Wolluin
Dot @ MLOE 2025

E;Ill't'll'l]d ra Voerm

Chiel Finiimeind (MTiver Company Secretary
PAN AWFPSOIMON Membership e AGTEIT



Statement of Changes in Equily for the Year ended March 31, 2025

PARTICULARS [ (= Lakn)
A |Equity Share Capital
Balance as at April 01, 2023 52.87
Changes in share capital during the year -
Balance as al March 31, 2024 6287
Balance as at Aprit 01, 2024 5287
Changes in share capital during the year =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5207
B.|Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus
Capital | Investment | Securities Other
Particulars Rﬂ;{:lz: Subsidy | Allowance | Premium :::1:;: Comprehensive Total
Reserva | Reserve Reserva Income
Balance at the Opaning of Reporting Period 1.2, 18t April 2023 13.32 1,13 18.65 35872 8,931.03 8,322 &6
Prafit for the Year - B - - 3 887.83 3,687 83
Othier Comprehensive Income for the Year® £ = =
ReceivedTransfer during the Year
Balance at the end of Reporting Perlod Le. 31st March 2024 13.32 113 1865 35872 | 12618.86 - 13.010 68
Balance at the Cpening of Reporting Perod .2 15t April 2024 13.32 1.13 10.65 358.72 | 12,618.85 13,010.68
Profit for the Year - 5273.98 5.273.98
Other Comprehansive Income for the Year® =
Received (Mransfer during the Year
Balance at the end of Reporting Period l.e. 315t March 2025 13:32 113 18.65 358.72 | 1789284 18,284 66

*Movement in other comprahensive rlates o re-measurements of the net defined beneit plans

Mature of Reserves:

a) Securities Premium Reserve: The amount of difference batween the issue price and the face value of the shares is recognized in securities premium
b} Capital Reserve The Compeny had craated capital reserve aut of the profit for the specific perposes in accordance with the pravision of the Act.

c) Capital Subsidy Reserva | This was capital grant from Govarnment.
d} Investment Allowance Reserve | This reserve is made to mitigate the loss of Investment.

) Rataired Eamings: Retained eamings are the profits that the Company has eamed Hil date, less any ransfers 1o
other reserve, dividands or other distributions paid to shareholders and other adusiments.

f} Other Comprehensive come: Differece betwaen the interest income on plan, assets and the retum actually achived and any changes in the liabilities
liabilitins over the year due to changes in actunal assumplions or expennce adustment within ine plan are recognized in other comprahansive iNncoma

The accompanying notes form part of Finansal Statemets

A5 per aur Report of Even date

For Rajesh Kumar Gokul Chandra & Associabes
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Registration No.323891E

A ihari T hppbon vrale
Archana .Jauunmjlnuu-lw-r.nkﬁr&Wq

Partnar
Maombership No. 069098

|Place: Kollata
Date:30.06.2025

For & on bahalf of the Board

\S

__~Abhishek Saraff
Director

Durgesh Kumar Shukla
Chiefl Financial Offlcer
PAN: AWFPS0180M

/i o

Subhash Chandra Saraff
Diractor
DIN. 00354969

Pri ?E;Ef?llrﬂ\

Director
DiM, 064201

earendra Verma
Company Secratary
Membership No: ABTE1T




AVADH RAIL INFRA LIMITED

CIN : U B1991PTCO5066%
C Flow Annexed to the Ba

r Year ended March 31,2025

{% Lakh}
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Amount Amount Amount Amount
Cash Fiows from Oporating Activities _
Met Profit before Tax and Extra-Ordinary llems 7.005.64 4,973.28
Adjustments For:
Cepreciation and Amerization Expenses 53426 437 84
Interest Received (78.03) (55.54)
Finance Cost 282 81 276.96
Fair Value Gain on Investment (216.37)
Loss on sale of fixed assets = 031
Profit on sale of fixed assets (206.54)
Income From Investment [28.83) (76.01)
[Decrease! (Increase) in Trade Receivable {157 .48) (3, 348.04)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 401,14 106.18
Decrease/ {Increase) in Inventores {2.283.93) 78,88
Cecreasel (Increase) in Shord Term Other Financial Assets {92.07) 536.58
Decreasel (Increasa) in Long Term Other Financial Assels {298.39)
Increasa / (Decrease) in Other Curenl Liabilities (124.64) 954.87
Decreasef (Increase) in Other Current Assels {605,78) -
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Provisions - (48.25)
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Tax Liabilties 426.63
Increase [ (Decrease) in Lease Rent Liabilities {1.34)
Increase in Current Tax Assets {204.83)
Income Tax Paid {1,666.78) (1,225.33)
Other Comprehensive Income {21.66)
Income tax adlestiment of earlier year (0.80) (30.41)
Met Cash From Operating Activities 2683.01 2,580.31
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Sale of fixed assats 20.48 (677.67)
Purchase of fixed assals {1,902.88)
nterest Income 78.03 55.54
Loss from sale of fixed assets - (0.31)
Profil from sale of fixed assets 206.54 =
Income From Investment 28.83 7601
Sale Proceeds of Mutual Fund & Gold 730.00 -
Purchase of Mutual Fund & Gold (1, 248.08) (BES.00)
Met Cash from Investing Activities {2 087 .08} (1,211.43}
Cash flows from financing activities
nterast Paid (282.81) (275.96)
Long Term Borowings Availed 2.734.72 165
Long Term Borowings Repayment (530.39) (1,306.086)
Purchase of Mon Current Investmenis (331.95 {725.58)
Increase in Loans Shart lerm 283.78
lIncrease in Loans Short term (596.50)
Decressiiincraase) in Non Current Assets (3,145,28) (67.66)
nerease In Short Term Bormowings (Met) 788.97 {1,035.91)
Ingrease In Other Financial Liablities [50.00)
Increase In Other Long Temm Liablities 116.91 45.00
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (1,022.55) {3, 207.08)
Met Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents [426.62) {1,838.20)
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalants 1,238.80 3,076.80
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Eguivalents 811.98 1,238.60
[ 0
Componeant of Cash & Cash Eguivalents
Particulars Year Ended Yoar Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Cash in Hand 20.08 16:10
\Balances with Banks 791,82 1,222 .49

The accomoanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Staterments

Ag per our Repord of Even date attached

For Rejesh Kumar Gokul Chandra & Associates
Chartarad Accountanis
ICAl Registration Mo, J23851E

1 [ jf 9 l
Archana Jhunjhunwala .

Partnar
Membership MNo: DEI0BE

Place - Hnliun_
Oate -10.08, 2026

For & on behalf of the Board

F__,-".ﬁhhishak Sarnff

Director
Dik, 00355289

Durges Fumar Shukla
Chisf Financial Qiticer
PAN: AWFPS0190N

5l

Director
DIN, DO384865

Pri n::S?rl-ng %‘r
-

Dib. 5420493

rendra Varma
Company Saarotiry
Mamiership Mo AGTEAT




AVADH RAIL INFRA LIMITED
[CIN : U25199TN1980PLC008354]
NOTE NO. 1: Significant Accounting Policies on Financial Statements
(Annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 and the annexed
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date.)

BRIEF PROFILE

The company is incorporated on 23rd July 1980 at Maraimalai Nagar, Tamil Nadu, India. It
is a Public limited company by its shares. The company is into the business of manufacturing
and supplying of various products for railways and executing work contracts.

The Registered Office of the Company is situated at PA5 Industrial Complex, Maraimalai
Nagar, District Kancheepuram, Tamil Nadu-603209.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section
133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the Companies Act, 2013. In addition,
the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAl) are also applied along with compliance with other statutory promulgations
require a different treatment.

1.2 Basis of preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act. These financial statements
have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual
basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies
stated out below.

The Financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company
presents its balance sheet in order of Liquidity.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

' Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assels
or liabilities that the Company can access at reporting date

« Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

valuation of assets or liabilities

Atet) and presented as per the requirements
dridirect method, whereby profit or loss is
ffash nature, any deferrals or accruals of

The statement of cash flows
of Ind AS 7 "Statement of C3
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:
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past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expense
associated with investing or financing cash flows.

The company sells its products to Railway and wagon builders which are based on the
tender which includes sales and also services of products if required for a certain period,
hence no segregation of value of sales and services is possible, therefore the total
revenue is considered as sales and services.

1.3 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists
reasonable certainty of its recovery. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable as reduced for estimated customer credits and
other similar allowances.

1.4 Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed,
if any, less accumulated amortization and cumulative impairment. Direct expenses and
administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to
acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalized as a part of the cost of the
intangible assets.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are
disclosed as “Intangible assets under development”.

Intangible assets are amortized on the written down value method over the estimated
useful life. The method of amortization and useful life are reviewed at the end of each
accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an
intangible asset are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

1.5 Property, Plant and Equipment's

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation less impairment loss, if any. Historical cost
comprises of purchase price, including non- refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separated items (major components) of property, plant
and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

e written down value method over the
@iy cases may be different than the rate
ik V2013, in order to reflect the actual

estimated useful lives of the asse 7
prescribed in Schedule Il to thg
usages of the assets.



The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period. The asset’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Useful life as prescribed in Useful life as
Class of Assets Schedule |l of Companies followed by the
Act, 2013 Company (in year)
in
ye-(ars}
Computers " 3
Furniture & Fixtures 10 10
" Office equipment 5 2
Vehicles 8 8

The assets' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount
and are recognized as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

1.6 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
PPE and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property
and intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss,
if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for impairment
each year. Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is determined in the case of an individual
asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use.

1.7 Employee benefits:
i. Short term employee benefits:

Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term
employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.

ii. Post-employment benefits:

a) Defined contribution plans: The Company’'s superannuation scheme, state
governed provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme and
employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution
paid/ payable under the schemes is recognized during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

by Defined benefil plans. The employees' gratuity fund and employee provident
fund is determined based on actuarial valuation.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the
gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognize the obligation on
a net basis.

iii. Termination benefits:

er employee separation schemes
's offer of the termination benefit is

En the Campayy
wanto the related restructuring costs

Termination benefits such a
are recognized as expense
accepted or when the Cd




whichever is earlier.

1.8Financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Company's balance sheet
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognized financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the
balance sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized
amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

1.9 Write off:

Loans, debt securities, sundry debtors and sundry creditors are written off when the
Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset (either in its
entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

1.10lmpairment:
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

= Loans and advances to customers;

o Debt investment securities;

= Trade and other receivable;

= Lease receivables,

= lIrrevocable loan commitments issued; and

= Financial guarantee contracts issued.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-
impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit
impairment includes observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
o a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

- the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider,;

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event—instead, the combined effect
of several events may have cau a2 hgssets to become credit-impaired. The
Company assesses whether de Merss _"\‘: are financial assets measured at
amortized cost or FVTOCI are each reporting date. To assess if

redit-impaired ‘
' EE?;‘@ & |Company considers factors such as
ility df the b

mwer to raise funding.
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A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due
to a deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a
result of granting the concession the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assets
where concessions are contemplated but not granted the asset is deemed credit
impaired when there is observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the
definition of default. The definition of default (see below) includes unlikeliness to pay
indicators and a back-stop if amounts are overdue for 90 days or more.

1.11Cash and Bank balances:

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

1.12Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method,
finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related
borrowings, that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is
ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

1.13Accounting and reporting of information for Operating Segments:

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision making body in the Company to make
decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation. The reporting of
segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the
performance assessment and resource allocation to the segments. Segment accounting
policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Company.

1.14Foreign Currencies:

i. The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.
Functional currency of the Company and foreign operations has been determined
based on the primary economic environment in which the Company and its foreign
operations operate considering the currency in which funds are generated, spent
and retained.

i, In currencies other than the Company's functional currency are recorded on initial
recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet
date, foreign currency monetary items are reported at the prevailing closing spot
rate. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of
monetary items at each Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognized

ii. Financial statements of foreig ghose functional currency is different



A. assets and liabilities for each Balance Sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that Balance Sheet;

8. income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average
exchange rates; and

c. all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign currency translation reserve for
subsequent reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of such foreign
operations.

1.15 Taxation:

Current Tax:

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income (or
on the basis of book profits wherever minimum alternate tax is applicable) and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and based on
the expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Company'’s financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences to the
extent that is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under
the head "capital gains" are recognized and carried forward to the extent of available
taxable temporary differences or where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realized. Deferred tax assets in respect of unutilized tax credits which mainly relate to
minimum alternate tax are recognized to the extent it is probable of such unutilized tax
credits will get realized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Transaction or event which is recognized outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or in equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable.

1.16 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions are recognized only when:

i a Company entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and

i. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and

i. a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provision is measured using the cash flows-e 'ted to settle the present obligation
and when the effect of time value of JQRE
provision is the present value of those/gs
of expenditure required to settle a pr'
that the reimbursement will be receiut
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Contingent liability is disclosed in case of.

.. a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

i. a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation
under the contract is recognized and measured as a provision.

1.17 Statement of cash flows:

Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating,
investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using
indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-
cash nature;

i. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealized gains and
losses; and

iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash
Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance
Sheet.

1.18 Earnings per share:

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares.
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

1.19Key source of estimation:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the
management of the Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and
liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and
equipment & intangible assets, expected credit loss on loan books, future obligations in
respect of retirement benefit plans, fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any,
between the actual results and estimates is recognized in the period in which the results
are known.

1.20 Inventories
Raw materials and consumable stores- Valued at cost on FIFO Basis.




1.21 Other Income Recognition

Interest on Loan is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts
invested and the rate of interest.

Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the right to receive the payment is
established.

1.22 Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on accrual basis and provision is made for all known losses and
liabilities.

1.23 Investments

Current investments are stated at the lower of cost and fair value. Long-term investments
are stated at cost. A provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline, other than
temporary, in the value of long-term investments. Investments are classified into current
and long-term investments.

Investments that are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one
year from the date, on which such investments are made, are classified as current
investments. All other investments are classified as non- current investments.

1.24 Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if at any time during the reporting period one party
has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and/or operating decisions.

As required by AS-18 "Related Party Disclosure” only following related party relationships are
covered:

i. Enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control,
or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the reporting enterprise
(this includes holding Companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);

i. Associates and joint ventures of the reporting enterprise and the investing party or
venture in respect of which the reporting enterprise is an associate or a joint
venture;

iii. Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the
reporting enterprise that gives them control or significant influence over the
enterprise, and relatives of any such individual;

iv. Key management personnel (KMP) and relatives of such personnel; and

v. Enterprises over which any person described in (iii) or (iv) is able to exercise significant
influence.

1.25 Fair Value Hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs),

1.26 Financial Risk Management Objecti d Policies:

The Company's activities are expo 56 ;;,
The key financial risks include Maskeyrisk,

i. Market Risk: L
5
Market risk is the risk that théﬁ

e

variety pf Financial Risks from its Operations.
Credi and Liquidity risk.

f@/cash flows of a financial instrument



will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises mainly
three types of risk, foreign currency risk, Interest rate risk and other price risk such

as Equity price risk and Commodity Price risk.
ii. Foreign Currency Risk:

The Board of director has constituted a risk management committee (RMC) to frame,
implement and mentor the risk management plan which inter alia covers risk arising
out of exposure to foreign currency fluctuation.

iii. Credit Risk:
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty might not honor its obligations under a financial

instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

iv.Trade Receivables:

Customer credit risk is managed based on company's established policy,
procedures and controls. The company assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors.

Credit risk is reduced by receiving pre-payments and export letter of credit to the
extent possible. The Company has a well-defined sales policy to minimize its risk
of credit defaults. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and
assessed. The Company follows the simplified approach for recognition of
impairment loss and the same, if any, is provided as per its respective customer's
credit risk as on the reporting date.

v. Liquidity Risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk, where the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash

or another financial asset. The company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,

vi. Capital Risk.

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to
continue as going concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through
optimization of debt and equity balance. The Company is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

The capital structure of the Company consists of total equity of the Company.
Equity consists of equity capital and Retained Earning.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.

1.27 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies General

Contingent Liabilities are provided in the Accounts on the best judgment basis depending
upon the degree of certainty of the contingency. Commitments are provided on the basis
of estimated amount of and period of occurrence. The balance of both, not provided for,
are disclosed by way of notes. However, there is no known or expected contingent liability
or commitment at the year end.

Additional Information disclosed as per Part Il of the Companies Act, 2013 — Nil
1.28 Earnings/(loss) per share

i. Basic earnings/ (loss) per share
Basic earnings / (loss) per shapeTs calce
+ the profit attributable to Pns
« by the weighted averagg
year.

pany
shares outstanding during the financial



ii. Diluted earnings / (loss) per share

Diluted earnings / (loss) per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of

basic earnings per share to take into account:

» the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares, and

» the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1. Critical Estimates and Judgments

In the application of the company's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the
management is required to make judgment, estimates, and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other process. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future period if the revision
affects both current and future period.

The following are the critical estimates and judgments that have the significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements.

2. Critical Estimates and Judgments

Estimation of Current Tax Expense and Deferred Tax

The calculation of the company's tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation
and judgment in respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined
until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through
a formal legal process. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for
income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax in the period in
which such determination is made.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is probable that sufficient
and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of
temporary differences can be deducted. To determine the future taxable profits, reference
is made to the approved budgets of the company. Where the temporary differences are
related to losses, local tax law is considered to determine the availability of the losses to
offset against the future taxable profits as well as whether there is convincing evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilized by the company. Significant items on which the Company has
exercised accounting judgment include recognition of deferred tax assets in respect of
losses. The amounts recognized in the financial statements in respect of each matter are
derived from the Company's best estimation and judgment as described above.

Estimation of Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The company exercises judgment in measuring and recognizing provisions and the
exposures to contingent liabilities, which is related to pending litigation or other outstanding
claims. Judgment is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed,
or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the financial settiement.

Because of the inherent uncertaintyAfthis aatiun process, actual liability may be
different from the originally astimat -8 {r Although there can be no assurance of
the final outcome of the legal procs HOf the company is involved, it is not

expected that such contingencie i @fial effect on its financial position or




profitability.
Estimation of useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets represent a significant proportion of
the asset base of the company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual
value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of company's assets are
determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including at each financial year end. The useful lives are based on historical experience
with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such
as changes in technology.

.Estimation of Provision for Inventory

The company writes down inventories to net realisable value based on an estimate of the
realisability of inventories. Write downs on inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not realised. The identification of
write-downs requires the use of estimates of net selling prices of the down-graded
inventories. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed.

. Impairment of Trade Receivable

The impairment provisions for trade receivable are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The company uses judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company's past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.




o .\_. LLBLY ssaa0ad Wi oaloig)
FTTTY 1 L eak |
cumpaoy | VEAET | sedhz | sealel | SWOAEL || s sesy siEnoned
PZ-EZ0Z SZVIZOZ
sseaboig uy yiop (ENdeD jo Buleby
“Bg| JSQwnu Sjou u) paduosep usag eaey Loiym o) Sunel sieep auy) 'sbuwaucd 1sumbe pabefpow ae sjuswdinka pue jued fpadoid ey
oN
05°L Z9'LL B 390F LE'FE H¥E LLEDL 20°0%i Lgez 0E's0al BLPSL SEELZL FE'86 [Ej0 | pUBID)|
05'd {limpoog) sizssy xgqibue) (infz
291k ssaifioig U o Eden )z
b 990y LEPE L P LLEQE 20701 LB QB0 Gl pSL [ FEEE sesey a@buz] Iz
ZE'G¥EE LLEDL BE'EEL BRE9 L1598 EvPBL CE9BEE o6 205 YZOE 'LE UDIEy] JE SE UoneDaidap pRje|mndry
ol 6l ol6E FESOOSN] LD LOOEIDG MR
FELEY Sa's B LS £0FL B5'SE D5 EL LURIE E9'L9 utmemasdag
BSBELIE BE'EE L2801 G 6F ELBFE ES'¥S S9EELE S Lk EE0E 'L Ty | SE uonesaudap _“_w._m_:E].%rﬂ
s L 9L a8 LaL c0'BEL 06 L51 BE9aL 6l GdF 250 29 Hoowr LLLGEL CHELEL FHEE FEOE "LE YIEBN IE 58 1800
o GLL ES ¥ EG¥E E|EE0dsI]
SLLL £L'5ew Zo g POEE E0 B ives E092 yally 1965 VS 86 —sUDIEpY
0Ed LrshL 09'05.9 BY BEL 98 #El 85 LEL ST gLy LE 6L BE'ERSE B2 166 cgalZE EE0E L WO IE 2B 1500
(impoon)|  ssasboig u) [T saimy| uoneEsy)| swawdinba seauep| swawdinbs|  wawdinbg| Buippng pue pue (=mossy SIEN3{LEd
HASSY| HOM [esides puE anyuing [Eaugaalg SNBO imndwey|  pueueld| pue Aojoey Plroyaaid o8 jo
alqifueu B pue
Proyases
s1assy agibum) sassy SjqiBuE]
Ty 3] ¥ €z
05'L LL G FLECFS LE'SE o'y 05°614 S8°85C BE LS EERA £2'6L5 05°3ECk 09°L6 [E10] pLEID
05 05°L (mpoos) slassy agibuetu) il z
LLBly LGP SEmbold Ul Yop, [ERDED (1T
L0'L00S LBEE o0 0eELL 98'862 BRLS 85 PIPT £ 619 09 SEEL 03 is sjassy n_n_m:ﬂ._. [
ﬂm.m_u_u.w GEwLL ZVEZ9) wO'ER £6'S0% GLaL FE'669E 0*'BES FZl G202 'LE WIEW B 58 Uonedssd=n parinunosy
LELL Ba L [N ci'ge s|es0dsig U0 uoieeldag
ST ES 8901 EZRE a9l gl B LF ZE'BE £9 92 LETLL rEl URRIZRTa0
ZE GFoE LLEDE B ETL g8'Ed LLasz EF gL ZE OBLE SR E05 PZOC || U0y 18 BB uDNEDesdap palEnuLInaTy
a5L __LLBLY 1Z°GL06 0Z 02l Z1 gal ¥5 102 6. ¥95 R [T EESLEL 0% 5EEL ¥E 86 20T LE 4By 1B 21805
29 Ll PZ'0g = or GE Ll Sjes0dzi]
LUBLY LLERFL gL Tl Z2'8 SEVE 16381 LFES I BLG5 SLDFIEY
05'L 29°LE o LLes Z0EEL [ 66991 51 90F FE S0l E9°1L00F LLUSEL S8 ELEL ¥EBE FZOZ L Uy 12 52 1507
suawdinb3 g jueld ‘Ausdoig (IFg
Inmpoos|  sseifosg uj [T sany| uvonejesu)| suawdinbg so|ayes| swewdinbs|  juswdinbg| Bupung pue, pueT] (s1888y SARNDLIE
op jepdes pue anjjmnd jEaLgaag A3y sapndwos pue jue|d| pue fojaey proysasy 23N Jo
W) pre
ployases
sjasey a|qbueE] Eja55y S[qIDUEL
(e 3) SZ-vZ0T 53355y SQIBUEIL| PUE SSaIB0Ig U YoM |Eldes Juawdinbs g jueid ‘fuadoid : 7 soN

SIUSWRES [B1aueuly Jo wed Gunuiog sagop)

(FSER00DTd0BELNLEELSZN - NID)
OL7 WHANI Ts HOVAY



AVADH RAIL INFRA LTD,
CIN: LU25199TN1980P

{¥ Lakh)
As at 31 As at 31
Note 3 : Investments March, 2025 March, 2024
Long Te rade
oted (At e Cos FVTPL
A. Investments in Equity Shares (Unquoted, Fully Paid)
1) Related parties
i} Radiant Buildeon Pt Ltd. (40,000 shares, PY. 40,000 shares) 56.00 56.00
i) ‘Subhamoti Finance Pvt. Lid. {2,50,000 shares, PY. 2,50,000 shares) 15.00 15.00
i) Subhamoti Exports Pvt, Ltd. (2,00,000 shares, PY. 200,000 shares) 1016 10.16
vy Avadhraj Energy Pvt. Lid. {6,00,000 shares, PY. 6,00,000 shares) &0.00 60,00
v} Avadh Technomaetal Pyt. Lid.(1,05,00,000 shares PY 1,05,00,000) 1050.00 1050.00
vi) Movius Technologies India Pyt Ltd (15000 shares PY Mil) 300.00 -
2) Others
i) Bihari Ji Cylinders Pyt, Lid. (43,510 Shares, PY. 43,510 shares) 4,35 435
i} Kamayani Enginesring Co. Put. Ltd. (46,150 shares, PY. 46,150 shares) 4,00 4.00
B. Investments in Praference Shares (Unguoated, Fully Paid)
i) Avadhraj Energy Pt Lid. (48 60,000 shares, PY. 48,60,000 shares) 486.00 486.00
C. Investments in Joint Ventures
it PPMPPL-AVADH JV {49% of Capital Contribution) 40,78 B4 83
D. investments in Venture Capital
iy Veda Investment Trust 7952 -
Total 2105.81 1750.34
Coglt of the Investment Ris. 2062 94 Lakh (P/Y - Rs, 1750,34)
Mote 4 : Loans
Unsourad considered goods
Long term loans & advances to related parties* 596.50 -
Total 596.50 -
* At the interest rate of 9.1% P.A
Mote 5 : Other Financial Assets
Security deposits 636,26 337.86
Sacured, considared good*
Total 636,26 337.86

*Securily deposits includes deducted by Indian Railways whila payment of invoices and are recoverable as per conditions of contract,

Note & : Other non current assets

Capital Advance

Secured, considered good 317534 3552
Deposit under protest
Deposit with Excise Department 567 567
Deposit with GST Depariment 547 -
Deposit with Sales Tax Department 16.82 16.82
Total 3203.30 58.01
Maote 7 : Inventories
As certified by Management
Raw materiats 295553 2268576
Finished goods (other than those acquired for trading) 1885.895 o
Consumable Stores 207.09 144,86
Wark in Prograss 602 80 586.60
Total 5651.37 336743
Note 8 : Investments
[Shert Term, Non Trade
il:n Invatments In Mutual Fund {MNos of Units 5,49 264 1017.88 BES00
i[|:|| Invetments (n Gaold (4000 grams BY! Nl 358.04
Total 1375.93 665.00




Note 8 : Trade receivables

fram the data they were due for paymeant

Trade racevablas outstanding for a peried exceeding six months

Unsecured, considerad good 84574 3350680
Other Trada receivables 10660 64 789598.30
Unsecured. considered good
Total 11506.38 11348.90
Trade Receivables ageing schedule
2024-25
Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less
than6 | & month More than 3
Mot Due | months | to 1 year [1-2vyear| 2-3year years
{1} undisputed trade receivables - considered good 452343 6137.22 | 30540 | 212.26 194.66 32.16 11405.13
{ii} undisputed trade receivables - considerad doubtful 101.25 101.25
(i} disputed trade receivables - considered good
{iv) disputed trade receivables - considerad doubtful
TOTAL 4523.43| 6137.22 | 30540 | 21226 194.66 133.41 11506.38
2023-24
Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less
than 6§ & month More than 3
Mot Due |months |to1year |1-2year| 2-3year YOars
(i} undisputed trade receivables - considered good 393060 | 405870 | 242013 | 74228 18.67 70.05 11258.43
(i) undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful 378 1.80 7961 B4.69
(ill) disputed trade recelvables - considerad good
{iv) disputed trade receivables - considered doubtful 578 678
TOTAL 3039.60 | 4058.70 | 242013 | T45.56 26.25 149.66 11348.90
*‘Details as per information availatie
MNote 10 : Cash and cash equivalants
Cash in hand (As ceriified by the management) 20.08 16.10
Balance with banks
in eument accounts 49.00 519,23
Cheques in Hand 15.42 50.54
Total 84.48 585.87
Mote 11 : Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
Margin money with Bank's™ F27.50 542.73
Total T27.50 G642.73
* The above batance Includes margin maney depaosits which are pledged with banks for issuance of bank guarantees
Note 12 : Loans
Shon term loans and advances 1o related parties 8222 366.00
Total B82.22 366.00




Mote 13 : Other Financial Assets

Prepaid expense- Unsecured, considerad good 31.58 30.90
Advances Recoverable in cash & kind (o relatad partias 9.02 41369
PVYC & Rale Difference Incoma Recoverable 35081 =
Earnest Money Daposit 191.86 48.71
Total 583.37 491.30
Mote 14 : Current Tax Assets (Net)
Income Tax Refundable 21561 10.41
TDS & TCS remaning to be claimed 0.96 1.33
Total 216.57 11.74
Note 15 : Other Current Assets
Advance lo SupplierService Providers 93529 558.18
{Unsecured, considerad good)
Advance lo Supplier/Service Providers 18753 185.88
(Unsecured, considered doubifull)
Othears
Advances lo Employees 2577 18.00
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance to Employees 292 2,87
(Unsecured, considered doubtfull)
Balances with government authorities
Deposit with Customs 76.33 21.23
G5T Refundable 177.89 280
Total 1405.73 799.96




ADH RAI

(CIN; L25199TN1980PLE00B3S)
MNotes forming part of the financial statements
Mote 16 | Equity Share Capital
16.1 : Equity Share Capital
(X Lakh)
Particulars As at 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2024 | As at 21.03.2024
Mo of Shares Amount Mo of Shares Amount
18 Authonsed
Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each 20,00,000 200,00 20,00,000 200.00
(b lzsued
Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs, 10/-sach 5,34 580 5348 5,34,580 5346
e} Subscribed & Paid Up
Crdinary Equity Shares of Rs. 10J- each 5,34 580 5346 534,580 5346
Less : Calls unpaid 0.59 (.54
5,34,580 52.87 5,34, 580 52.87
18,2 : Reconcialiation of number of Ordinary shares outstanding
(¥ Lakh)
Particulars As at 34.03,2025 | As at 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2024
Mo of Shares Amount Mo of Shares Amount
Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs 104 each fully paid up
As al baginning of the yaar 5,34,580 52.87 5,34 580 5287
Add: Shares issued, Subscribed and Paid Up during the year -
As at end of the year 5,344,580 52.87 5,34 580 52.87
16.2 : Shareholders holding more than 8% of the Ordinary Shares in the Company
Particulars As al 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2024
Mo of Shares % Mo of Shares %
i) Subhash Chandra Sasaff 82527 17.50 92527 17,50
iy Anjah Saraff 131810 24.93 s 2493
i} Abhishek Saraff 80350 17.08 S0as0 17.09
W) Subhash Chandra Saraff (HUF) 106580 2016 106580 2016
v} Puliman Enginesring Co. Pyt. Lid. 40004 T.57 40000 787
wi)  Zoom Construction & Holding Co, Pvt, Ltd 524040 G481 2400 9.81

Nate; The company has issued equily shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each sharehalder |s eligible for one vote per share
held. In the event of liguidation. the equity shareholders are aligible 1o recelve the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharehalding and are subject to praferential rights of the Preferential Shares (if issued).

16.4 : Dotails of shareholdings of the promoters in the Company

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2025 | As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2024 % change
Mo of Shares % Mo of Shares % during the year
iy Subhash Chandra Saraff 92627 17.50 82527 17.50 .00
iy Anjal Saraff 131810 24.93 131810 2493 0.0d
iif]  Abhishek Saraff H0350 17.08 20350 17.09 0.04
iv}  Subhash Chandra Saraff (HUF) 106580 20.18 106580 20,18 0.00
v} Pullman Engineering Co. Pvi. Lid 40000 T.87 A0000 T.67 0.00
vi} Zoom Construction & Hotding Co, Pyt Lid 52400 8.9 52400 9.9 0.00
vii) Sweta Saraff 9023 17 8023 1.7 0.04
wiil} Subhamatl Finance Pvi Lid 1200 023 1200 0.23 0.00
Note 17 : Other Equity {¥ Lakh}
Particulars As at 318t March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Amaurt Amount Ampunt Amgunt

Reservas and Surplus
(a} Capital Reserve

Balance as par last account 13.32 1332

Add - Received during the year 13.32 13.32
() Capital Subsidy

Balance as per last account 1.43 1.13

Add;- Received dunng the year 113 113
() Invasimant Allowance Rasarve

Balance as per |ast accaunt 1885 1865

Add- Received during he yaar 1885 1865
() Secuniies pramaum BCoounl

Balanoe as per last acoaunt Isa T2 35872

Add - Recewed dunng the yaar 358 T2 36872
1@ Surplus

Balaroe as per Last Account 126510.88 B931.03

Less - Admisiment for gharge in wseiul

AdofLess) Nel Profit [ Net Lass) for the vear G273 98 3BRT A3

_iragasa ] 1261886 |
1828456 1301068
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AVADH RAIL INFRA LTD.
(CIN: U25199TN1980PLCD0B354)

Mote 18 : Borrowings (% Lakh)
As at 31 As at 31
March, 2025 | March, 2024
Term Loans
Secured, considerad good 3407 82 1487.02
Total 3497.82 1487.02
*Refer Schedule 18(z) & 18{b)
MNote 19 : Lease liabilities
Non current
Long Term Lease Liabilities g96.16 97.50
Total 96.16 a7.50
MNote 20 : Other non current laibilities
Liabil es Retirement Fund
Grautity 20551 160.91
Leave Encashment 173.70 113.23
Others
Disputad Liabilities 238.92 237.07
Total 618.13 501.21
Note 21 : Borrowings
Repayable on demand
From banks
Secured
Unian Bank of India {Cash Creadit Limit Account ) 142127 1366.39
Punjab Mational Bank (Cash Cradit Limit Account) 1489.45 63335
Yes Bank (Cash Credit Limit Account) 995,93 1123.04
Unsecured Loans®
Related Party 271.58 27558
Other 140.00 140.00
Current maturities of long - term debt 704,49 510.96
(Refer MNote No. 18 (a) & (b) for nature of securities and terms of repaymeant)
Total 5032.72 4050.22

Waorking capital loan is secured by hypothecation of present & future stocks and book debts and second charge on the Company's
immovable properties situated at Haridwar by deposit of tithe deeds and also by second charge on all plant & machinery and other fixed
assets of the Company, both present & future, and are additionally secured by personal guarantees of the Director Mr. Subhash Chandra
Saraff. Mrs Anjali Saraff and Mr. Abhishek Saraff, Applicable rate of interest is Union Bank Of India 2.50%, Punjab Mational Bank of India

9.25% & Yes Bank 8.97%
* Unsecured loan is Interest free

Mote 22 : Lease liabilities

Current
Short Term Lease Liabilities 1.34 1.34
Total 1.34 1.34
Note 23 : Trade Payables
Trade Payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entarprises 228.20 175.27
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2875.29 252808
Total 3104.49 2703.35




Trade Payables ageing schedule

2024-25
Particulars uuhhndinﬂ for following periods from due date of payment Total
e5s than 1 2-3 WMore than 3
Mot Due year 1-2years |years years
iy MSME 228.20 228.20
(iiy Others TGO .85 2057.71 246 44 88 2874.90
(i) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 0.44 0.36 0.59 1.39
TOTAL 998.05 2058.15 2.82 0.59 44.88 3104.49
2023-24
Particulars outstanding for followin riods from due date of payment Total
En-n than 1 Z-3 ore than
Not Due year 1-2years |years yoears

(i} MSME 17527 17527
(i) Others 2320.35 078 204.23 218 252752
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Othars 0.24 0.32 0.56
TOTAL 175.27 2320.59 1.10 204,23 216 2703.35
“*Details as per information available
Note 24 :Other financial liabilities
Security Money against sale of property . 50.00

Total - 50.00
Note 25 : Other current liabilities
Statutory remittances T07.14 G49.87
Others for Expenses 1632.25 1668.71
Liability against goods in transit 5.64 -
Advance from Customers 34.69 184.73
Due to Employees - 1.05

Total 2379.72 2504.36




AVADH RAIL INFRA LTD.

CIN: ] PLCO0B354
(% Lakh)
For the Year ended  For the Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
MNote 26 : Revenue from operation
Sales and Services of Manufactured Goods 4419902 40557.88
Sale of Scrap/Rejected Goods 426.10 517.01
Other operating revenue 58,85 275.78
44683.97 41350.67
MNotes
Sale and services of Manufactured Goods comprises
Domestic Sales and services 44198.02 40487.79
Exports Sales and services - 70.08
44199.02 40557.88
Sales of Process/Other Scrap
Process scrap 408 .44 478.16
Others 17.68 37.85
426.10 517.01
her operating revenue
Bad debts recovered later 58.85 275.78
58.85 275.78
*Sales & services of manufactured goods includes supply and services including works contracts.
*Contracts Assets in accordance with IND AS 115 is Rs.4523 43 lacs (PY 3839.60 lacs)
Note 27 : Other income
Interest on Fixed Deposit 75.74 52 88
Interest on Security Deposit 2.28 268
Rent received 14.40 14.40
Insurance claim received 25.91 -
Profit/lLoss on sale of fixed asseis 206.54 -
Gains/Loss From Investments {.52) 21.18
Income from Partnerships/Joint Ventures 29.25 54 .84
Profit/Loss on foreign exchange fiactation 47.81 115.35
Impairment Gain on Investmeant 216,37 -
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 12.16
617.88 273.47
MNote 28 : Cost of materials consumed
Raw Material
Opening slock 241061 230947
Add Purchases 27511.30 2613564
29921.91 2844511
Less: Closing stock® 3162 .62 2410.61
26759.28 26034.50
* Clesing stock of raw material is inclusive of consumables
Note 28 : Changes In inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 1885.95 a2
WP 602.80 586 .61
2488.75 8956.82
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 37021 519.36
Wie 58661 618.468
058.82 1137.82
[1531.93) 181.00




AVADH RAIL INFRA LTD.

(CIN: U25199TN1980PLCODB354)

(% Lakh)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Note 30 : Employee benefit expense
Salaries & Wages 1519.65 1151.45
Director's Remuneration 1089.57 1036.08
Gratuity 35.51 23.38
Leave Encashment 11263 22.02
Bonus & Exgratia 107.60 78.34
Staff welfare expenses 130.57 144.93
Employee State Insurance Contribution 4.39 4.03
Contribution to Provident Fund 42 93 .60
3042.85 2491.83
Note 31 : Finance costs
Interest expense on:
Borrowings:-
Term Loans 189.07 236.01
Cash Credit Limits 103.74 3695
Others 0.00 -
292.81 275.96
Note 32 : Other expenses
Manufacturing expense
Power and Fuel 43317 399 84
Processing ,Royalty and work charges 307806 1590.47
Labour charges 1613.59 1057.74
Repairs & maintenance at factory 192.86 133.45
Fraight (including shipping charges) 1441.62 1447 .81
Other expenses
Advertisement 1016 10.91
Bank charges 108.73 62.53
Repairs & maintenance - Others 142.04 394 .82
Vehicles Running & Maintenance 46,87 49.09
Electricity Expenses 18,34 5.16
Sales promotion expense 320.79 134.47
Administration charges 17,72 a7.80
Profit'Loss on sale of fixed assets - 0.31
Security charges 71.74 58.60
Subscriptions and Donations 9.56 5963
Rent 85.61 48.73
Rates & Taxes (excluding taxes on income) 15.12 45,39
Penalty & Fines 16.82 252
Filing Fees 0.26 0.25
Director's Sitting Fee 8.51 10.55
Sundry Balances written off 14.00 82.25
Technology Fees 11.18 34.65
SVC Deductions - 74.18
LD deduction * 555.31 660,72
Commission Paid - 0.04
Registration and Tender fees 145 2.83
Professional and legal fees 449,08 37459
Travelling expenses 468,38 301.41
Telephone Expenses 18.39 1763
Internal Audit Fees 3.00 -
General expensas B.74 9.04
Insurance 30.37 22.61
Printing & Stationery 17.49 15.92
Postage & Telegram 7.46 487
CSR Expenses 59.50 12.25
PVC Deductions 1208 9,80
Remuneration to Auditor's
For Statutory Audit 2.00 2.00
FarTax Audit 050 0.50
For other services 4.05 2.70
9198.93 7215.95




AVADH RAIL INFRA LIMITED
[CIN : U25199TN1980PLC008354]

NOTE NO. 33: MNotes on Accounts on Financial Statements

(Annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 and the annexed
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date.)

OTHER NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Figures of the previous year has been re-grouped/re-arranged and recasted wherever necessary.
All the figures are rounded off in Lakhs.

2. Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures as required by the Indian Accounting Standard 24 " Related Parties" issued by the
Ministry of corporate affairs.

A. Relationship are given below :-
a) Directors :- (1) Subhash C. Saraff, (2) Abhishek Saraff, (3) Privanka Saraff, (4) Kalyanaraman
Ganesan (Independent Director), (5) Honey Singh (Independent Director) .

b) Relative of Directors — (1) Anjali Saraff, (2) Sweta Saraff.
c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)-

i) Abhishek Saraff, - Managing Director (w.e.f August 12, 2024)

i) Durgesh Kumar Shukia- Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f May 12, 2025)

iif) Dheerendra Verma- Company Secretary (w.e.f May 12, 2025)
d) List of Group Companies according to their respective relationship:
1. Subsidiary Company

Sr No. Name of company

Radiant Buildcon Private Limited

Subhamoti Finance Private Limited

Subhamoti Export Private Limited

Avadhraj Energy Private Limited

Avadh Technometals Private Limited

Novius Technologies India Private Limited

O (O | | DD | =

2. Entities which have common control/ having significant influence:
Sr No. Name of company

Pullman Engineering Company Private Limited

2 Kamayani Engineering Products Limited

3 Sumo Pullman Private Limited

4 Bihari Ji Processors Private Limited

5 Atlantic Tradelinks Private Limited
6

7

8

—_

Emerald Tracon Private Limited
S S Agencies Private Limited
Sumo Forge Limited

9 Madras Elastomers Limited
10 | Recon Engineering Co. Private Limited ;
11 Zoom Construction & Holding Co. Private Limited ,
12 Novius Systech India Private Limited :
3. Joint Venture/LLP

' Sr No. Name of company
1 PPMPPL-Avadh JV
2 Atlantic Tradeengineers LLF &

3 Avadh-Rail-PPMPPL JV /o
;I =




B. Transaction with related Parties

(Figures in bracket indicate previous year i.e. 2023-2

C. Amount Outstanding (Receivable/Payable) as on % :

(5
i)

Parties Name Nature of Relationship | Amount of Outstanding
Transaction Transaction (¥ | as on
Lakh) 31.03.2025 (¥
Lakh)
Subhash Chandra Saraff | Director Director 24.00 0.00
remuneration (24.00) (00.00)
Abhishek Saraff Director Director 561.70 0.00
remuneration (530.73) (00.00)
Priyanka Saraff Director Director 501.70 0.00
remuneration (470.73) (00.00)
Kalyanaraman Ganesan Sitting fee Independent 8.00 -0.65
Director (9.35) (-0.65)
Kalyanaraman Ganesan Professional Independent 1.71 0.00
Fees Director (0.00) (0.00)
Honey Singh Sitting fee Independent 1.26 -0.29
Director (1.20) (-0.27)
Anjali Saraff Payment of Related Party 18.00 0.00
Salary (28.00) (0.00)
Avadh Technometals Pvt. | Rent Received Subsidiary 14.16 -0.11
Ltd. (14.16) (0.00)
Avadh Technometals Pvt. | Sale of goods/ | Subsidiary 67.29 301.06
Ltd. services (168.73) (182.23)
Avadh Technometals Pvt. | Interest Subsidiary 27.16 0.00
Ltd. Received (0.00) (0.00)
Avadh Technometals Pvt. | Purchase of Subsidiary 3143.28 0.00
Lid. goods/services - (782.98) (0.00)
Avadh Technometals Pvt. | Loans and Subsidiary 422.77 596.50
Ltd. Advances (637.50) (225.00)
Atlantic Trade Engineers Sale of goods / Subsidiary 10.62 0.00
LLP services (10.62) (0.00)
Atlantic Tradelinks Pvt. Rent received Group 2.83 0.00
Ltd. company (2.83) (0.00)
Pullman Engineering Co. | Purchase of Group 2316.73 -220.51
Pvt. Ltd goods/services company (2651.70) (-480.37)
Pullman Engineering Co. Loans Given Group 100.80 0.00
Pvt. Ltd company (0.24) (100.80)
Radiant Buildcon Pvt. Ltd. | Loans Given Subsidiary 11.10 9.02
(0.00) (151.96)
PPMPPL-Avadh JV Sale of Group 193.28 323.93
goods/services | company (571.02) (815.43)
Sumo Pullman Pvt Ltd. Loans Given Group 28.45 0.00
company (0.00) (28.45)
Sumo Forge Ltd. Loans Given Group 131.48 0.00
company (542.00) (131.48)
SSKA Design Purchase of Related Party | 7.21 0.00
Goods o (0.00) (0.00)
Novius Technologies India | Loans Given Subsidiary 82.22 82.22
Pvt Ltd - - (0.00) (0.00)
Novius Technologies India | Investment in Subsidiary 300.00 0.00
Pvt Ltd equity shares (0.00) (0.00)
Novius Technologies India | Services taken Subsidi 156.60 156.60
| Pyt Ltd ’ | }n@g&@% (0.00) (0.00)
6\? L

ntioned above




(Z Lakh)

3. Earnings Per Share _ 2024-2025 | 2023-2024
a) Calculation of Weighted average (no. of equity shares of Rs. 10/- '
each.)
No. of shares at the beginning of the period 534580 534580
Share issued during the year. Nil Nil
No. of Shares at the close of the period 534580 534580
after Weighted average no. of Equity shares during the period 534580 534580
(b) Net Profit for the period attributable to equity shares ( Rupees 5273.98 3687.83
Lakhs)
(c) Basic & diluted earning (in Rupees) per shares 986.56 689.86

4. Deferred tax assets/liabilities:

Over the period of time, the Company has provided less depreciation in the books of accounts on the
existing assets than that claimed as per Income Tax Act. So there are deferred tax Liabilities on account
of it. The accumulated Deferred Tax Liabilities as on 31.03.2025 was Rs. 114.62 Lakhs as against the
Deferred Tax Liabilities of Rs. 62.19 Lakhs as on 31.03.2024, This is in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (IND AS 12)"Accounting for Taxes on Income".

5. Employees Benefits

The Company has applied Indian Accounting Standard (IAS)-19 and the employees benefit regarding
Gratuity as per actuarial report and Leave Encashment which are payable before the end of twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render service are measured at cost and are
recognized as expenses as and when it accrues.

6. Details of immovable properties whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company.

Description | Gross | Title deed | Whether title | Property held | Reason for not
of item of | Carrying | held in the | deed holder is a | since which date | being held in the

Property Value name of | promoter, director name of the
the or their relative or company
company | employee

Nil

7. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

8. Disclosure on Loans / Advances to Directors / KMP / Related Parties (T Lakh)

Type of borrower Amount of loan or advances in | Percentage to the total Loans
the nature of loan outstanding | and Advances in the nature of
loans
Repayable on demands Nil NI
|
Promoters Nil Nil
Directors Nil | Nil ]
KMPs Nil NIl '
Related Parties 687.74 = 100%

Gonul ChanoN\
9. There is no capital work in progress who pletionig averdue or has exceeded its cost compared

to its original plan.



10. There are no Intangible assets under development or whose completion is overdue or has exceeds
its cost compared to its original plan.

11. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company for holding
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
there under as at 315 March 2025.

12. The company has been availed working capital limits from Banks on the basis of security of current
assets and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement
with the books of accounts of the company and there are no material deficiencies to disclose.

13. The company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or by

any other lender.

14. The company has utilized the fund raised from the bank or financial institutions for the same purpose
for which the loan was taken during the year.

15. Financial Ratios

Reason for
major variance
(for changes
Sl. Variance | more than
No. | Ratios Numerator | Denominator | 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 | (in %) 25%)
Current Current Current
1 | Ratio Assets Liabilities 1.98 1.92 2.83
Debt .
Equity Total Debt E“aftﬂ“*"der $
2 | Ratio quity 047 | 042 9.75
Debt Earnings
service available . Investment In
coverage |for  debt Debt servion Capex
3 | ratio service 0.92 0.37 148.16 Increased
Return on | Net  profit :::rr:ﬁ; e
equity ratio | after tax
4 fund 0.34 0.33 2.62
:3::2:2? Cost of fﬂuuerage
5 | ratio goodssald | inventory 707| 9068 |-21.91
Trade
receivable | Net credit :::;ﬁf
turnover sales -
6 | ratio recelvavies 391 427 |-852
Trade
payables Net credit | Average trade
turnover purchases | payables
7 | ratio 947 | 8.86 -3.93
MNet capital Average
turnover Net sales : .
8 | ratio warking capital 454| 520 |-14.05
MNet Profit of the
company has
Net profit | Net profit increased
| ratio after tax resulting in
positive
9 8.92 32.89 variance




Eaming
S;t'i'::r o before Capital
: rrf loveq | interestand | employed
10 ploy tax 0.32 0.35 -8.73
Return on :f;;me Total Addition in
11 |Investment | U ot | Investments 6.20 3.18 94.67 Investment

16. There is no charge or satisfaction of charges is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies.

17. The company has followed / complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rule 2017,

18. There is no scheme of arrangements has been approved by the competent autharity in terms of
section 230 to 237 (Corporate Restructuring) of the Companies Act 2013,

18. Company has received a notice from Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE) and came to know that their
shares have been listed long ago on CSE, however, the present management was not aware about the
status of company as "listed entity” company as demanded by CSE has paid pending listing fee from FY
2001 till now, to avoid any future litigation and decided to opt for delisting of shares, if listed with CSE.

20: The company did not have any transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961.

21. Details of Corporate Social Responsibility:

a Amount required to be spent by the | 56.46 Lakh
company during the year

|'b. Amount of expenditure incurred 59.50 Lakh
c Utilized from available surplus 00.97 Lakh
d. Shortfall at the end of the year NIL
[ Total of previous year's shortfall MIL
. Reason for shortfall MNA
g. Mature of CSR activities Construction of Hospital/School, Hunger

Eradication, Skill development, Helping needy
and deprived, Safe home & other activities as
given in schedule vii of the Companies Act,
2013.

h. Details of related party transactions | NA

I Movement of provision during the | NA

year

22, The company has not traded or invested Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

23. The company has not entered in any transactions with any struck off companies under section 248
of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act 1956,

24. The company has not borrowed any funds for the purpose of further lending, investment, guarantee
or security to the third parties during the year.

25. As per view of chief decision maker, the company deals in single line of products/ services i.e Railway
products/ contracts, hence there is no reportable segment as per IND AS 108.

26, During the year the company has entered into an agreement with Sharda Motor Industries Limited
to buy its leasehold property along with building located at SHDCUL, Haridwar, Uttarakhand for Rs.
2305.00 Lakh and has paid an advance of Rs. ¥23.05 Lakh during the year.




27 .Advances to supplier includes an amount of Rs.175.47 Lakh which was given to an overseas supplier
who had failed to supply the goods as per terms of contract resulting in cancellation of purchase order
from our side. Company is opting to resort on legal action to recover the same and is expecting to recover
the whole amount without any deductions.

28. The Company has followed level 3 of fair value hierarchy of the financial instruments considering all
current assets and liabilities are at fair value. However, unquoted shares are subject to the valuation by

the independent valuer.

29. Balances of Trade Receivable, Loans & Advances, Trade Payable and Other current assets &
liabilities are subject to confirmation from the respective parties and consequently adjustments if any will
be made at the time of reconciliation. Management believes that there will be immaterial impact on
account of confirmation.

30. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 116
a) Interest Charged to Profit & Loss Account during the year Rs 126.89 (PY Rs NIL)
b) Payment of Rent made during the year Rs 1,33,696.50 (PY Rs 1,33,696.50)

31 Considering the company has been extended credit period up to 45 days by its vendors and payments
being released on a timely basis, there is no liability towards interest on delayed payments under “The
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2008" during the year. There is also no amount
of outstanding interest in this regard, brought forward from previous year. Information in this regard is
on basis of intimation received, on request made by the company, with regards to registration of vendors
under the said Act.

32. Contingent liabilities and commitments
(i) Capital commitment: (% Lakh)

Particulars As at 31st March, 25 | As at 31st March,24

Estimated amount of contracts remaining
to be executed on capital account and not 1990.02 7.57
provided for (net of advance)

(ii) Contingent liabilities (¥ Lakh)
Particulars As at 31* March, 25 As at 315 March 24
Bank Guarantees 2149.00 1526.76
Other contingent liabilities Nil Nil
Disputed amounts for GST,sales tax, Excise 9.85 9.85
and entry tax (net of deposits)

33. Additional information pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 :- (Z Lakh)

Details of ltems of Exceptional and Extra Ordinary Nature NIL

a.

b. | Prior period Items B NIL

c. | 1. Value of Imports on C.I.F. basis, 8.205.63
2. Expenditure in Foreign Currency on Account of Royalty, Know-how, | 1,048.02
Fees, ) -
3. Interest and other matters and remittance on account of dividend in | NIL
foreign currency

d. | Earning in Foreign Exchange on Export, Royalty, Know-how, Fees, | 16.38
Interest, Dividend, Advance recew mst export sales or others
e. | Aggregate of the amounts ¢ roposed to be set aside to | NIL
Resewes or Provisions \-




Notes "1 to "33" form an integrai part of the accounts and have been duly authenticated.
As per our report of this date annexed
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